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RFP Reference Question/Comment Answer(s) 
1 Solicitation page 

L-18 
In your Solicitation # NNA09281196R on  page L-18, paragraph 
6, in the area entitled, Labor Rates, it states  the Offeror shall 
pick one of the three options: (1) Proposing to pay current 
incumbent labor rates, (2) Proposing to not pay current 
incumbent labor rates or, (3) Other.  Subsequent paragraph 
contains parallel language pertaining to CBA Seniority rights.  
Executive Order No 13495 and FAR 22-1002-3 specifically 
require a successor contractor to offer wages at least equal to 
those contained in any bona fide collective bargaining agreement 
entered into under the predecessor contract.  Will NASA accept 
proposals that offer wage rates that are less than the current 
incumbent labor rates in direct conflict with these 
regulations?  I request your input as early as feasible because 
the answer to this question directly impacts our staffing strategy 
for this solicitation. 

No.  Offerors should keep in mind that FAR 
22.1002-4 states: “No contractor or 
subcontractor holding a service contract for any 
dollar amount shall pay any of its employees 
working on the contract less than the minimum 
wage…”, and the incumbent contractor could be 
paying more than the minimum.  The incumbent 
pay options were designed to elicit the offeror’s 
intentions with regard to salaries/wages, benefits 
and seniority if retaining incumbent staff.  Note 
that FAR 22.1002-3(a) states, for those covered 
under a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA): 
“Successor contractors…same locality must pay 
wages and fringe benefits…at least equal to 
those contained in the CBA...”  

2 Solicitation page 
L-9  
Past Performance 

Section L (b)(1)  Please clarify the statement: "For the offeror 
and each major subcontractor, provide a list of not more than 3 
relevant contracts (government and/or industry). 

        Please confirm that based upon the aforementioned 
statement we could submit up to 6 PP contracts if we bid with 1 
Major Subcontractor. 

Yes, 3 PP contracts for the Prime contractor and 
3 for the single Major Subcontractor.   

3 J.1 (b)6 
Contract Task 
Orders  

Section J.1 (b)6 There is no Contract Task Order Issued for 
Section 4.8 Industrial Property Support.  Has the government 
removed this requirement or will there be a CTO issued before 
the proposal is due? 

There is no current requirement for Industrial 
Property Support.  The task will be issued when 
required. 
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4 J.1(b)3   Pricing 
Template 
Workbook 

Is it possible for the government to establish a start date for the 
new procurement so it can be taken into consideration for the 
rate development? 

 The estimated start date for this procurement is 
June 1, 2010. 

5 General We are contemplating bidding on the logistics management effort 
at Ames and request that you provide the current Collective 
Bargaining Agreement. 

Copies of the CBAs can be obtained by clicking 
on the link below:   
http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/eps/eps_data/134166-
AMEND-001-002.pdf 

6 Page L-9 Section L.7(b)1 states “For the Offeror and each Major 
Subcontractor, provide a list of not more than three relevant 
contracts.” Is it a total of three relevant contracts per team?  

No the Prime Contractor would provide a list of 
not more than three of its relevant contacts and 
each Major Subcontractor would be required to 
provide a list not more than three relevant 
contracts each. 

7 Page L-3 Section L.5(b)5 states that offeror’s are to submit 2 electronic 
copies of the past performance proposal. The chart in Section 
L.5(b)(1) shows 0. Can the government please clarify the number 
of electronic copies of the past performance proposal offeror’s  
are to submit? 

The chart in section L.5(b)1 is revised on 
Amendment 03 to require that 2 electronic 
copies of the past performance Proposal shall 
be submitted. 

8 Page L-12 Section L.7(b)B states “The Offeror is responsible for ensuring 
that the respondent completes and submits the questionnaire 
directly to Mr. Hale at the address above, no later than 10 days 
prior to proposal due date.” 10 days prior to the due date is a 
Sunday. Can the government please clarify if questionnaires 
should be submitted by COB Friday or if Monday is acceptable? 

Monday is acceptable. 

http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/eps/eps_data/134166-AMEND-001-002.pdf�
http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/eps/eps_data/134166-AMEND-001-002.pdf�
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9 Page L-3 Section L.5(b)5 states “Mission Suitability and Past Performance 
shall be submitted (in addition to the hard copies specified in 
(b)(1) above) in Portable Document Format (PDF), except that 
electronic copies of the Pricing Template Workbook in Section J, 
attachment J.1(b)3 are required to be saved and submitted in 
their Excel (.xls) format, not in PDF.” Can the government please 
clarify what versions of Adobe Acrobat and Microsoft Excel are 
required? 

Standard pdf files are acceptable.  Excel 2003 
or 2007 are acceptable.   

10 Section L          
Page L-17  

Summary Price Template (SPT) 

The paragraph includes a government estimate for ODCs for all 
11 task orders. Will the government provide a breakdown of the 
totals shown, by cost type (Materials, Travel & Training) for 
EACH task order? 

The Government will not breakdown the data 
by cost type for each task order.  Generally 
these ODCs will fall under CLIN 03, on a 
contract level task order. 

11 Section L          
Page L-17, 
Paragraph 3 

Summary Price Template (SPT) & Attachment J.B.7 – Historical 
Data  

The paragraph includes a government estimate for ODCs for all 
11 task orders.  The amounts estimated for Travel appear 
excessive, as the task orders requirements provided do not 
identify ANY travel requirements nor does the historical data in 
Attachment J.1(b)7 – Historical Data. Will the government provide 
historical data to allow a proper estimate of travel costs for each 
task order? 

See answer #10 above. 
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12 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0005 

Refuse & Recyclable Materials collection AND Section L, Page L-
13, Paragraph 1(6)-“Price any major subcontract that has a 
potential estimated total value in excess of $100,000.00 per year 
or $500,000.00 for the five year  inclusive effort, a Volume III, 
Price, must be provided for that subcontract following the 
subsequently specified format.” 

For Task Order 0005, Service subcontractors such as Waste 
Management for refuse and recyclable pickup and disposal 
typically do not prepare quotes in the format mandated in Section 
L paragraph cited above. 

 
Q.1 For subcontract quotes from Service subcontracts such as 
Refuse/Recyclable companies like Waste Management, is it 
acceptable that bidder’s propose their costs without completion of 
the “Volume III Price? 

 
Q.2 For subcontract quotes from Service subcontracts such as 
Refuse/Recyclable companies like Waste Management, is it 
acceptable that bidder’s include these proposed totals in the 
“ODC” section of the Summary Price Template (SPT)?   

A.1   The Government requires the data for any 
Major Subcontractor over $100,000.00 per year 
or $500,000.00 for the 5 year inclusive effort for 
evaluation purposes.  All subcontractors in 
excess of the thresholds specified in the 
solicitation are required submit proposals in the 
specified format. 
 

A.2    No.  The “ODC” section of the Summary 
Price Template is for the ODCs specified in the 
solicitation (materials, travel, training) as shown 
on page L-17 of the solicitation. 

 

13 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0009A 

Reproduction Services, Page 2 of 3, Task Description: 
Reproduction Services 

“Maintain a minimum two-week supply of paper and consumable 
supplies (e.g. toner, fuser, staple wire). Submit requests for paper 
and supplies to the COTR at least two weeks prior to depletion of 
stock.” 
 
Q. Is the paper, supplies and other stock identified in the 
paragraph above to be included as material costs in the “ODC” 
section of the Summary Price Template (SPT) for task order 
0009A? 

See answer #12 above. 
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14 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support, Page 2 of 16, Paragraph 4.7.1, 
Description-Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Support: 

“Provide repair and preventive maintenance services, including 
for equipment which has exceeded its life expectancy, as if it 
were in its last year of expectancy.” Is this repair and 
maintenance only on the NASA owned equipment and not on the 
GSA equipment listed in the historical data Attachment J.1(b)7? 

Yes, the repair and maintenance is only on 
NASA owned equipment. 

15 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support, Page 3 of 16, Paragraph 4.7.2, 
Description: Tow Truck (Wrecker)/Road Side Services 

“As required tow or transport disabled vehicles and remove 
improperly parked vehicles (including non-Government vehicles) 
when requested by police or authorized Government 
representative.” It is assumed NASA will provide, at no cost to the 
bidder, the wrecker/tow & Service truck required to perform these 
services, not only for vehicles and pickup trucks, but also for the 
larger Blue Bird Buses and other heavy equipment. 
 
Is that correct? 

Yes, this is correct. 

16 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support, Page 2 of 16, Paragraph 4.7.1, 
Description: Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Equipment 

“Conduct Safety Inspections every six (6) months, calibrations, 
load tests, and other related services appropriate for 
vehicles/equipment listed in Section J at least once every six (6) 
months.” It is assumed the bidder will NOT provide services 
stated above for GSA owned vehicles and large equipment. 
 
Is that correct? 

Yes, this is correct. 
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17 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support, Page 2 of 16, Paragraph 4.7.1, 
Description: Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Equipment 

“Conduct Safety Inspections every six (6) months, calibrations, 
load tests, and other related services appropriate for 
vehicles/equipment listed in Section J at least once every six (6) 
months.”  
 
Would the Government confirm that Load testing must be 
performed every six (6) months instead of every twelve (12) 
months? 

Amendment 03 revises attachment J.1(b)6, 
Contract Task order #0007 to reflect the 
following: “Conduct safety inspections every six 
(6) months, calibrations every twelve (12) 
months, load tests every twelve (12) months, 
and other related services appropriate for 
vehicles/equipment listed in Section J at least 
once every six (6) months”. 

18 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support, Page 2 of 16, Paragraph 4.7.1, 
Description: Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Equipment 

“Provide off-site repair services for Special-Purpose Mobile 
Equipment (SPME) that may not physically fit into the ARC 
service bays.  The Contractor shall be responsible and 
accountable for security and conveying such vehicles to an 0ff-
base facility and their return when repairs are complete.” It is 
assumed the bidder will ONLY be “responsible and accountable 
for security and conveying such vehicle to an off-base facility and 
their return when repairs are complete provide services stated 
above for GSA owned vehicles and large equipment.”  
 
It is assumed the costs of these off-site repairs are NOT to be 
proposed as part of Task Order 0007. 
 
Q. Is that correct? 

Off-site repairs are to be proposed as part of 
Task Order 0007. 

19 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support. It is assumed that all gasoline, diesel 
fuel, propane, lubricants and oil expended in the performance of 
the contract requirements of all Task Orders for vehicles, trucks 
and equipment is provided, at no cost to the contractor, by the 
government (NASA). 

Q.  Is that correct? 

Yes, this is correct. 
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20 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0007 

Fleet Management Support. It is assumed that all vehicles, vans, 
trucks, engineering equipment, etc. required by the contractor to 
accomplish the requirements of the Task Orders contained in this 
request for proposal will be provided by the government, at no 
cost to the contractor.  

Q. Is that correct? 

No, only those included in attachment J.1(a)4 
will be provided by the Government. 

21 Section L Page L-8, 
Paragraph 1. 
General 

The paragraph includes the following instruction: 
The offeror’s plans and rationale to provide its own equipment 
(either in addition to, or in place of, Government-provided 
equipment.”  
 
It is assumed that all office equipment & furniture, hand tools, 
vehicles, trucks, and heavy equipment to accomplish the 
performance requirements of  the contract for all Task Orders is 
provided, at no cost to the contractor, by the government (NASA). 
Is that correct? 

See answer #20 above. 

22 Attachment J.1.(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0004 

Janitorial Services: 

It is assumed that all janitorial equipment will be provided by the 
government, at no cost to the contractor,  to include janitors carts, 
hard floor auto scrubber , carpet dryers, 20 gallon wet/dry 
vacuum, backpack vacuum, floor stripping machines, standup 
vacuum-regular, standup vacuum-pile brush lifter, steam cleaning 
machine, high speed battery burnisher, 3000m master pressure 
washer, grout scrubbing machine, basic tool box, industrial buffer 
machines, industrial carpet cleaner, cleaning system, etc. Is that 
correct? 

No. Janitorial equipment will not be provided. 
See answer #20 above.  

 

23 Attachment J.1.(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0004 

Janitorial Services 

It is assumed that all interior and exterior window washing is NOT 
part of the Task 004 scope of work (other than interior Spot 
cleaning). Is that correct? 

Yes, this is correct. 
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24 Attachment J.1.(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0004 

Janitorial Services. Does Task 0004 include the cleaning and 
replacement of any floor mats in the facilities?  

If so, could the government identify the quantity, size and location 
of all floor mats? 

The task requires the cleaning of floor mats 
(referred to under Task 0004 as “entrance 
mats”). See Historical Data and Virtual Tour for 
further information. 

25 Attachment J.1.(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0004 

Janitorial Services: 

 It is assumed that all vehicles and vans required to accomplish 
the requirements of the contract for janitorial services will be 
provided by the government, at no cost to the contractor. Is that 
correct? 

Yes, this is correct. 

 

26 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0010 

Business Office Support,  Paragraph 0007  

It is assumed that all computer hardware, peripherals and 
software-plus updates, required to accomplish the requirements 
of this task order will be provided by the government, at no cost 
to the contractor. Is that correct? 

Yes, computer hardware and peripherals as 
listed on attachment J.1(a)4 will be provided. 

 

27 Attachment J.1.(b)1 
– Government 
Labor Estimate: 

It is noted that positions the government has labeled as “exempt” 
are cross-mapped to Service Contract Position (SCA) labor 
categories (e.g. – Buyer (Order Clerk I)).  

Is the government directing the contractor to change these 
positions from Exempt to non-exempt SCA labor categories? 

No the Government is NOT directing the 
contractor to change these positions from 
Exempt to Non-Exempt SCA labor categories. 

28 CBA between 
Tessada & 
Associates and 
International 
Association of 
Machinists and 
Aerospace Workers  

Q:  Does the government intend to make contract award prior to 
March 31, 2010?  If not, will the government provide newly 
negotiated CBA via an amendment? 
 

If a new CBA is in effect prior to contract award, 
the new CBA will be negotiated into the 
contract in accordance with the Service 
Contract Act. 
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29 CBA between 
Tessada & 
Associates and 
Scientific and 
Commercial 
Systems 
Corporation and 
Service Employees 
International Union  

Does the government intend to make contract award prior to 
March 31, 2010?  If not, will the government provide newly 
negotiated CBA via an amendment? 
 

See answer #28 above. 

 

 

30 CBA Between 
Tessada & 
Associates and 
International 
Association of 
Machinists and 
Aerospace Workers 
- Article 14 – Group 
Health Plan  - 
Section 1 

Employer Obligations: states “effective September 1, 2007 the 
Employer agrees to pay 90% of the Trust premium for active 
employees and the employee shall be responsible for paying 
10% of the Trust premium.“ What is the current monthly premium 
and are percentages still 90% Employer – 10% Employee? 

The Government is not a party to this 
agreement.  All information available has been 
posted. 

31 CBA between 
Tessada & 
Associates and 
Scientific and 
Commercial 
Systems 
Corporation and 
Service Employees 
International Union 
- Section 7-
Employee Benefits 

Paragraph 2(b) states “The Employer agrees to contribute 
$667.17 per month to the General Employees Trust Fund for 
Health coverage. . .” What is the current monthly premium and 
are percentages still 90% Employer – 10% Employee? 

See answer to #30 above. 
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32 CBA between 
Tessada & 
Associates and 
Scientific and 
Commercial 
Systems 
Corporation  and 
Service Employees 
International Union 
– Section 4 – 
Paragraph E 

Employee Uniform: states “Each employee shall wear an “ What 
is the current monthly premium and are percentages still 90% 
Employer – 10% Employee? 
 

See answer to #30 above. 

33 CBA between 
TESSADA & 
ASSOCIATES, INC 
and 
INTERNATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION OF 
MACHINISTS AND 
AEROSPACE 
WORKERS, AFL-
CIO, Article 14 – 
Group Health Plan 
Section 1. 

Employer Obligations of the states: “The present monthly 
premium to the CMTA-IAM Joint Health & Welfare & Dental Trust 
for active employees is $832.50.”  This was stated as current as 
of April 1, 2006. Since this CBA was attached to this contract by 
way of issuing this CBA a Wage Determination # (WD CBA-2009-
2829 Rev 0 dated 6/30/09) will the government provide the 
current monthly premium as of March 1, 2010 to all Offerors? 

See answer to #30 above. 

34 Attachment J.1(a)1 
(SOW) Paragraph 
2.0 page 3 

Paragraph 2.0 states: “ The services required under this contract 
shall be provided primarily at the Moffett Field site.” What are the 
other government sites that will be utilized under the proposed 
CTO’s? 

As stated in the solicitation, section F.3 PLACE 
OF PERFORMANCE: “The services to be 
performed under this contact shall be 
performed at the following location(s): Moffett 
Field, CA and at such other locations as may 
be directed by the Contracting Officer.”  
Examples of sites other than Moffett Field are: 
Camp Parks, CA and at local Art and Wine 
Festivals. 
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35 Attachment J1(b)1 
– Government 
Labor Descriptions 
is in a PDF form. 

Many of the Responsibilities/Level of Supervision and 
Education/Work Experience requirements have been cut off and 
the full descriptions have not been shown. Can the government 
reissue attachment J1(b)1 showing the entire description. 

Attachment J.1(b)1 has been revised on 
Amendment 03 to include the entire 
descriptions. 

36 Attachment J.1(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0004 Page 
8 of 13 

“Refills of dispensers…shall be made with acceptable products 
as stated in Section C.4, Contractor-furnished items.” Section C.4 
does not appear to have a separate Contractor-furnished Items 
list. Would the government please provide? 

The contractor is required to furnish all supplies 
for the janitorial portion of the contract.  CTO 
#0004 has been changed on Amendment 03 to 
remove the reference to C.4. 

37 Attachment J.1(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0007 
Paragraph 4.7.7.2, 
Page 4 of 16 

Bicycle Repair and Lockers states: “Provide bicycle lockers and 
repair services for government-owned bicycle as necessary.” 
There does not appear to be a list of lockers or bicycles in 
Attachment J.1(a)4.   

Q1. Would the government provide that list?  

Q2. Are bicycle lockers provided by the Government at no cost to 
the Contractor?  If no, how many lockers are required under 
CTO#0007? 

 

A.1  On Amendment 03 attachment J.1(a)7 has 
been updated to reflect the 50 bikes and 144 
bike lockers that are at various locations at 
Ames Research Center. 

A.2   The bicycle lockers are provided by the 
Government. 

38 Paragraph 4.0 
FUNCTIONAL 
REQUIREMENTS 
of the SOW, Page 
4, 

lists each functional requirement.  However Paragraph 4.8 
Industrial Property Support described on page 8 of the SOW 
Attachment J.1(a)1 does not have a corresponding CTO 
provided. Would the government provide the CTO for the 
Industrial Property Support? 

See answer #3 above. 
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39 Attachment J.1(b)6 
– Contract Task 
Order #0007, Page 
2 of 16, Paragraph 
4.7.1 

Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Support state: “Provide repair 
and preventive maintenance services, including for equipment 
which has exceeded its life expectancy, as if it were in its last 
year of expectancy.”  The Attachment J.1(a)4 Installation-
Accountable Government Property list provided for Government 
Equipment/Vehicles show 16 vehicles.  However, Attachment 
J.1(b)7 Historical Data for CTO #0007 identifies 58 GSA vehicles 
and 138 NASA owned Vehicles as well additional vehicles that 
have exceeded their life expectancy.  

Would the government clarify which list is an accurate 
representation of vehicles and equipment that will be managed 
and maintained under CTO #0007? 

GSA vehicles are managed, but not maintained 
under this contract. All NASA vehicles and 
equipment listed are managed and maintained 
under this contract. 

40  Should repair and replacement cost for government owned 
property be included in Offeror’s proposed ODC cost for the 
respective CTO’s? 

Repairs are included in the price of the CTO 
and are not ODC.  Replacement would be 
included in CTO for CLIN 03. 

41 Part 1 – The 
Schedule-Section B 

Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs –Item No 02 and 04 
references the Table of Cumulative Contract Task Order Values 
Attachment J.1.(a)10.  

Q. 1  It is assumed the table referenced above should be placed 
in the Cover Letter in Volume I directly behind the Schedule B. Is 
that correct? 

Q.2  If not where should the referenced table be placed? 

Attachment J.1(a)10 is included in the RFP for 
informational purposes only.  This table used 
after contract award to track Cumulative 
Contract Task Values. 

42 Attachment 
J.1(a)10 – Table of 
Cumulative Value 
Task Order Values. 

The first column on this table is labeled “Functional Requirement 
Code.” Can the government please define “Functional 
Requirement Code? 

The Functional Requirement Code is used for 
describing the organization requesting the task 
order. 
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43 J.1(b)6 – Contract 
Task Order #0005 
– Refuse & 
Recyclable 
Materials collection.  

Q.1 Is there any medical waste generated by the Ames facility 
requiring pickup and disposal? 

 
Q.2 If there is medical waste generated by the Ames Facility, is 
there historical data to support the quantity of waste and 
frequency of required pickup(s)? 

The medical waste generated at the Ames 
facility is disposed of through another contract 
and is not included in the LMS requirement. 

 

44 Page L-3 - Section 
L.5 (b) – (2) 
instructs offerors to 
submit a cover 
letter in Volume I of 
the proposal.   

Along with the cover letter is to be a completed Standard Form 
3881, ACH Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Form 
(Attachment J.1 (b) 5) of RFP. Under the Section Titled “Financial 
Institution Information” of SF3881, there is a line for “Authorized 
Official’s” signature. Are offerors to obtain Signature of 
Authorized Official prior to proposal submission or after contract 
award? 

All documentation is to be signed at the time of 
proposal submission in accordance with 
L.5(b)(2). 

45 Section 5. “Pay for 
work on a Holiday” 
on page 9 of the 
CBA between 
Tessada & 
Associates, Inc. 
and IAM 

states: “Employees who qualify for holiday pay in accordance 
with Section 2 of this Article shall receive double time for work 
performed on any of the recognized holidays.” Does the 
government wish all Offeror’s to provide a double time rate for 
any hours that would be required to be worked on any given 
holiday? 

See answer #1 above. 
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46 J.1(b)1 – 
Government Labor 
Estimate. 

In reviewing the Work year and labor hours per labor categories, 
some question arises as to what the work year equivalent is for 
each class (exempt, non-exempt & CBA) of labor presented.  For 
instance in the exempt section, the Business Analyst is estimated 
at 1.0 Work Year Equivalent (WYE), equating to 1,800 standard 
work hours, while another proposed exempt position, Deputy 
Program Manager is presented as 1.0 WYE equating to 1,500 
standard work hours, the Maintenance Vehicle Supervisor is 
proposed at 1 WYE equating to 2,250 standard work hours. 

Q.1 Are the estimated WYEs and corresponding standard direct 
hours for the three exempt labor categories detailed above all 
correct? 

Q.2 What is the Work hour Equivalent (WYE) for exempt labor 
categories used by the government estimate? 

A.1   Amendment 03 revises the Work Year 
Equivalent and standard hours for the 
Maintenance Vehicle Supervisor to 1.5 WYE 
and 2,250 hours. 

 

A.2   The Work Year Equivalent (WYE) for 
exempt labor categories are listed on 
attachment J.1(b)1. 

47 J.1(b)1 – 
Government Labor 
Estimate. 

In reviewing the Work year and labor hours per labor categories, 
some question arises as to what the work year equivalent is for 
each class (exempt, non-exempt & CBA) of labor presented.  For 
instance in the Non-exempt section, the Duplicating Machine 
Operator is estimated at 1.0 Work Year Equivalent (WYE), 
equating to 1,840 standard work hours, while another proposed 
Non-exempt position, Events Coordinator is presented as 1.0 
WYE equating to 1,800 standard work hours.  

Q.1 Are the estimated WYEs and corresponding standard direct 
hours for the two Non-exempt labor categories detailed above all 
correct? 

Q.2 What is the Work hour Equivalent (WYE) for Non-exempt 
labor categories used by the government estimate? 

A.1   Yes, they are correct. 

 

A.2   The Work Year Equivalent (WYE) for Non-
exempt labor categories are listed on 
attachment J.1(b)1. 
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48 J.1(b)1 – 
Government Labor 
Estimate. 

In reviewing the Work year and labor hours per labor categories, 
some question arises as to what the work year equivalent is for 
each class (exempt, non-exempt & CBA) of labor presented.  For 
instance in the CBA section, the Journeyman is estimated at 1.0 
Work Year Equivalent (WYE), equating to 1,500 standard work 
hours, while another proposed CBA position, Disposal Specialist 
is presented as 1.0 WYE equating to 1,800 standard work hours, 
the Recycling Processor is proposed at 1 WYE equating to 684 
standard work hours. 

Q.1 Are the estimated WYEs and corresponding standard direct 
hours for the three CBA labor categories detailed above all 
correct? 

Q.2 What is the Work hour Equivalent (WYE) for CBA labor 
categories used by the government estimate? 

A.1   Yes, they are correct. 

 

A.2   The Work Year Equivalent (WYE) for CBA 
labor categories are listed on attachment 
J.1(b)1. 

49 SOW, Page 8, 
Section 4.7, 

What level of maintenance and repair activity is the contractor 
expected to perform? 

The contractor shall provide the necessary level 
of maintenance required by the Statement of 
Work and applicable Contract Task Order.  

50 SOW, Page 8, 
Section 4.7 

Is the contractor responsible for vehicle painting and corrosion 
control? 

These are not currently required.  When such 
support is required, a separate Contract Task 
/Order will be issued. 

51 SOW, Page 8, 
Section 4.7 

Please define or further exemplify the “other action” required in 
support of GSA. 

This would include other administration duties 
that facilitate GSA vehicle maintenance, repair, 
and management. 

52 SOW, Page 
8,Section 4.7 

Please clarify what is meant by “control” of fuel. Control to ensure that fuel is not issued to 
unauthorized personnel.  
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53 SOW, Page 9, 
Section 5.0: 

Will the government provide a list of alternate event sites that 
have been used in the past?  What percentage of annual 
activities have historically been held off Moffett Field? 

The percentage of annual activities that have 
been held off Moffett Field is very low.  An 
example of an off-site active is that NASA 
Ames had a booth at the Mountain View Art 
and Wine Festival.   

54 Attachment J1(b)7,  
Workload Factors, 
CTO #0002 

Equipment Management:  Are the sensitive and capital items 
subsets of the “inventory of active items”? 

No.  They are all separate inventories. 

55  Is NASA going to provide any janitorial services equipment(s) as 
stated in the Draft RFP?  It was not listed on attachment J.1(a)4 

See answers to #20 and 22 above. 

56  Can you provide us with historical data on required shredding and 
recycling services? 

This information is in the Historical Data 
Attachment J.1(b)7 

57  Can you please provide us with # of events and or activities last 
year held at NASA where special events support services was 
required? 

There were approximately 11 events last year. 
See also #53 above 

58  For History data on attachment J.1(B)7, CTO#4, pg 19 of 96;  Is 
the Janitorial Trouble Call data provided is for monthly or yearly? 

The Historical data provided is Monthly 

59  On attachment J.1(b)7 - CTO#0005. Pg 23 of 96, Pg 26 of 96 and 
Pg 27 of 96.  What does the 4th column mean (aggregate)?  
 

Also what are the bin sizes? 

Aggregate = Cement trash receptacles made of 
concrete, steel reinforced that help keep the 
environment clean, with a rigid plastic liner.  

The bin sizes are 2 Cubic Yard, 4 Cubic Yard, 8 
Cubic Yard and 40 Cubic Yard.  

60  Trash hauling cost, where should the cost associated with trash 
hauling be stated, can it be stated in the overhead? 

The cost needs to be proposed explicitly under 
that task order.   

61  What Is the size of Cardboard Bins? The Cardboard bin size is 4 Cubic Yard. 

62  Can the minimum text size be changed to 10 rather than 12, as 
the words come out extremely large for the 12 point font, and due 
to page limitations? 

The minimum acceptable text size is 12 as 
stated in the RFP section L.6. 
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63  The Page limit for the Past Performance section is 20 pages, 
however if we have other major subcontractors, and each has to 
provide 3 or less references of their own, it gives us very limited 
space.  Can there be an increase to the page limit with the 
number of subcontractors we have, or a definite increase to the 
page limit for past performance? 

On Amendment 03 the Page limit for Past 
Performance has been changed to 25 pages. 

64 Section L            
Page  L-20 

L-9, of the NASA Ames RFP, it states: 

Wage Determination numbers 2005-2062 Revision 9, CBA 2009-
2829 Revision 0, and CBA 2009-2830 Revision 0 are included in 
Section J as Attachments J.1(a)2. The collective bargaining 
agreements (CBAs), referenced in Wage Determination numbers 
CBA 2009-2829 between the incumbent Contractor and the 
International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers 
AFL-CIO, District Lodge #190 of Northern California; and CBA 
2009-2830 between the incumbent Contractor and Subcontractor 
and the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 
1877 can be obtained by written request to the Contract 
Specialist at William.Hale@nasa.gov. 

Can you please provide us with a copy of determination for 
collective bargain agreement for both union agreements? 

Copies of the Wage Determinations can be 
obtained by clicking on the link below:   
http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/eps/eps_data/134166-
SOL-001-004.pdf.  Copies of the CBAs can be 
obtained by clicking on the link below: 
http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/eps/eps_data/134166-
AMEND-001-002.pdf  

 

65  But what about the Seniority list? It would be helpful to us, as It 
will provide the rate and # of employees onsite.  The information 
can provide us with the accurate incumbency rate that is asked 
on the price sheet.  Is there a possibility to obtain that? 

See answer #30 above. 

66  I am sure you are aware that the CTO #0008 for SOW 4.8 
Industrial Property Support is missing from the RFP TO 
Attachment 

CTO #0007 leaves off at Page 16 of 16 
And is followed by CTO #0009A Page 1 of 3 

Pls advise when the TO will be posted. 

See answer #3 above. 

mailto:William.Hale@nasa.gov�
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67 Attachment J.1(b).7 
– Historical Data & 
CTO 0007 Fleet 
Management 
Support 

It is assumed the data contained in Attachment J.1(b)7 – 
Historical Data, Pages 50 through 92 for Task Order 007 Fleet 
Management Support includes a list of vehicles and Equipment 
that is NASA and GSA owned. 

 
Assumption 1 – It is assumed all NASA owned equipment 
identified as “Acquired NASA owned Vehicles & Equipment” is 
the responsibility of the contractor under CTO 0007. 
 
Q1. Is that Correct? 

 
Assumption 2 – It is assumed all NASA owned equipment 
identified as “Excess NASA owned Vehicles & Equipment” is 
NOT the responsibility of the contractor under CTO 0007. 
 
Q1. Is that Correct? 

A.1   Yes, this is correct. 

 

A.2   Yes, this is correct. 

68 Attachment J.1(b).1 
– Government 
Labor Estimate 

The base hourly rate ($26.23) for the CBA labor category entitled 
“Disposal Specialist (Warehouse Specialist)” does not correspond 
to any of the labor rates included in Section 6-Wages, Paragraph 
B – Hourly Wage Rates in the Multi-Employer Collective 
Bargaining Agreement between Tessada & Associates, Inc. & the 
Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1877 for the 
period April 01, 2006 through March 31, 2010. 
 
Q.1 Which CBA rate did the government utilize in their 
government labor estimate, Attachment J.1.(b).1? 
 
Q.2 – If this rate was a newly negotiated rate with SEIU, would 
the government provide bidders a copy of the signed agreement? 

A.1   The Government used the rate in 
accordance with the CBA. 

 

A.2 The Government is not a party to this 
agreement.  However, if a new CBA is in effect 
prior to contract award, the new CBA will be 
negotiated into the contract in accordance with 
the Service Contract Act. 

 

69 Reference 
Attachment J.1(b)6 
Contract Task 
Order #0004  

Paragraph 4.4.6.5 Building 221 (Fitness Center) on Page 4 of 13 
 
Q. Please provide the Building Characteristics -- Square Footage, 
etc. 

This information was posted in the Historical 
Data attachment J.1(b)7 and Virtual Tour. 
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70 Reference 
Attachment J.1(b)6 
Contract Task 
Order #0004 

Paragraph 4.4.6.7 NASA Ames Conference Center on Page 4 of 
13: 

Q. Please Provide the Building Number. If the Building Number is 
not on the current list, please provide the Building Characteristics 
-- Square Footage, etc. 

The Building Number is 3 and it is on 
attachment J.1(b)7. 

71 CBA between 
Tessada and the 
SEIU 

According to the Addendum referenced in the CBA between 
Tessada and the SEIU provided with Amendment #1, the Supply 
Specialist has been combined with the Mail Carrier/Clerk to form 
the new position of Mail/Supply Specialist. 

Q.  The government forms in attachment J.1(b)3 Pricing 
Template, lists the eliminated position of Mail Carrier/Clerk.  
Should the contractor add the new position to the NASA SLC’s 
for pricing purposes? 

As stated in J.1(b)1 the classification of Mail 
Carrier/Clerk is included in this requirement.  

72 General Periods of Performance dates are not specified in solicitation. Will 
the government provide/specify start and end dates for Periods of 
Performance? 

Other then CTO P-1, the periods of 
performance will be considered to be 1 year. 

73 General Is there a cutoff date for the submission of questions regarding 
the subject? 

All questions have to be submitted with 
sufficient time for the Government to post a 
response prior to the RFP closing date.  

74 Past Performance Since the page limit is 20 pages, Is it possible to include 
customer service surveys/reviews from our references as an 
appendix, without them counting against our page limit? 

No, see exceptions to the Volume II page limit 
in L.6(a), note under table and paragraph 
L.6(c).  Customer service surveys/reviews 
included in Volume II will count against the 
page limit. However, Amendment 3 increases 
the page limit for Volume II to 25 pages. 

 


